

MENTOR

The Newsletter of Arisia, Incorporated—Number 220—September 2014
Arisia, incorporated, 561 Windsor Street, Somerville, MA 02143
+1-917-7ARISIA (+1-917-727-4742)

Notices

The September Meeting of Arisia, Inc. will be held on Sunday September 28th, 2014 at 2 PM at MIT. Please check building 66 or your email for exact location. Directions can be found at http://corp.arisia.org/corpdirections-mit. The quorum for this meeting is 14 based on 51% of the average attendance of the last three meetings (25, 22, and 32). Please send any proxies to corp@arisia.org. Proxies do not count towards quorum.

At this meeting we will be voting on a Bylaws amendment to deal with the election of Members-At-Large of the Eboard which was introduced at the August meeting:

Move to change the Bylaws as follows:

3.6 A majority of the votes cast is required to elect an officer [ADD except at-large members]. On each ballot in which no candidate has received a majority, the candidate with the fewest votes shall be dropped for subsequent ballots.

[ADD NEW AFTER 3.6 and before 3.7: Voting for at-large members of the Eboard will be by Australian Preferential Ballot / Instant Runoff Voting (APB / IRV) as implemented by WSFS as of 2013.]

We will also be holding annual officer elections at this meeting.

August 3, 2014 Meeting Minutes

August 3rd, 2014 Meeting Minutes

Date, Time, and Place: The meeting was called to order by Conor Walsh at 2:25 PM on Sunday 3 August 2014 at the Chez-Wood, the home of Rick Kovalcik, in Newton, MA.

In attendance (32 voting members):

David D'Antonio, Daniel Eareckson, Don Eastlake, Jill Eastlake, Jaime Garmendia, Lisa Hertel, Terry Holt, Fred Isaacs, Ray Isaacs, Suli Isaacs, Rachel Kadel-Garcia, Walter Kahn, Allan Kent, Rick Kovalcik, Paul Kraus (new member), Alex Latzko, Benjamin Levy, Dale Meyer-Curley, Lia Olsborg, Kris Pelletier, Sharon Sbarsky, Micah Schneider, Nicholas Shectman, David Silber (new member), Kris Snyder, Mike Sprague, Persis Thorndike, Tom Traina, Pat Vandenberg, Al Walker, Conor Walsh, and Tanya Washburn. Also in attendance were non-members Jeff Keller, Aileen Latzko, Rachael Stark, Jeff Warner, and Arthur the cat.

Proxies:

Dawn Ash to Jaime Garmendia, Bridget Boyle to Alex Latzko, Anna Bradley to Conor Walsh, Mary Dumas to Lisa Hertel, Joel Herda to Kris Snyder, Crystal Huff to Mike Sprague, Jeanne Kahn to Walter Kahn, Rick Katze to Sharon Sbarsky, Erik Meyer-Curley to Dale Meyer-Curley, Karen Purcell to Alex Latzko, Noel Rosenberg to David D'Antonio, and Janet Stickle to Ben Levy.

Corrections to the minutes: The Treasurer's report should reflect that we allocated \$400 for paying Hobbit for the grid cart he purchased. It should have said \$900 for the Voted Expenses, not \$500.

Eboard Report (Conor Walsh):

The EBoard voted unanimously, at A16 Chair Kris Snyder's request, to appoint Rick Kovalcik as A16 Treasurer. Mail to buttercup@arisia.org will go to both Rick and Kris. We are likely to renew the storage lease very soon. If you have compelling options for different storage space, please contact the EBoard right now.

We are now processing PayPal payments for Helsinki as part of our fiscal stewardship. We will be putting some language on our website to clarify our position regarding being in favor of smoothing the bid process for non-US bids, but being neutral on the particulars of the 2017 race, and asking them to link to that language. Helsinki's current language reads as slightly more "Arisia is in our corner" than some of us are comfortable with.

Tanya's workplace is donating us an old Braille printer. There was a lapse in updating the Arisia Policies. We've spent effort going over all the Mentors starting with the lapse and updating them, and we believe they're now accurate. [Ben and other people have included updates as printed in Mentor since March 2012.] MPU from EBoard to confirm the Policies as currently posted on the website. [See elsewhere in this Mentor for the current Arisia Policies. If you discover anything anything missing, please resubmit it to the corporation as a new policy amendment.]

President's Report (Conor Walsh):

After being advised to for years, I went to CONvergence. It's an excellent con, and more like Arisia than any other con I've ever heard of. They're twice our size and have a very similar history and operating philosophy, and as President I think we should make it a point to have a working relationship with

them at least as close as the one we have with NESFA or Pi-Con. We can learn some great stuff from them. I took pretty elaborate notes, which will be posted on the Staff Wiki [Available now at

http://staff.arisia.org/index.php?title=Conor%27s_Convergen ce_Report; you will need to create a Staff Wiki account if you don't already have one.]

I'm looking into some survey questions to poll our membership, mostly about desired growth levels. This would normally be an LRP issue, but there has been minimal interest in planning that's actually long-range. I'm not sure what the right way to implement this poll/survey would be, if you have ideas for methodology or questions please contact me. We hope to start this by the time Arisia 2016 registration opens. Conor took an informal straw poll as to how people felt about election methods for at-large EBoard positions. Very few votes in the room approved of repeating last year's format of three separate runoff votes. Over 75% of the votes in the room approved of a Hugo/Australian single-ballot IRV. Almost no votes in the room approved of academic/approval voting. [Note: Questions were raised post-meeting as to the clarity of this poll - Whether it was clear that people could "approve" of multiple methods, and whether it was clear that people fully understood the voting methods being discussed. This poll, then, may not accurately reflect the views of the membership.]

Treasurer's Report (Ben Levy): We got the D/B/A certificate to be able to help Helsinki with their banking. We are working on getting a credit card for use by the Quartermaster and Food Division.

As usual, we have money. Ask if you want details or see

Mentor.

Clerk's Report (Rick Kovalcik): It is \$2 to join the Arisia Corporation this month if anyone wants to join. Dues are due by next month. If dues are a problem, please ask the Eboard or a member of the Eboard for a dues waiver.

Given the PO Box rental was up, it was closed. We will be receiving our mail at Storage where we have a locking mailbox. A forwarding order was submitted which is good for six months. [It turns out that the forwarding order is probably good for one year.] Should a future clerk (and at this point I do not intend to run again for Clerk in September) desire to move our official address else again, it is strongly suggest they give preference to places with 24 hour access and reasonable parking.

Members-At-Large Reports (Tanya Washburn): No report.

A14 Report (Lisa Hertel): We are working on closing the books.

A14 Treasurer's Report (Rachel Kadel-Garcia): I've processed about \$2k of additional expense reports and reissuing of checks. At the moment it looks like Arisia 2014 will make about \$42k.

A15 Report (Mike Sprague): It looks like we are going to have a con. We are still looking at Div Heads for Publications and Marketing which have been split into two divisions again. As Conor said I was at Convergence. It's huge. I was also at Detcon, the NASFiC, a couple of weeks ago. There were some good ideas out of that too. Brainstorming is closing on August

17th. [Available now

http://staff.arisia.org/index.php?title=Mike%27s_Convergence_Report; you will need to create a Staff Wiki account if you don't already have one.]

A15 Treasurer's Report (Alex Latzko): We have a draft budget which was printed in Mentor and which we will bring up under new business.

A16 Report (Kris Snyder): Thank you Eboard for approving my suggestion for Treasurer. I hope to start contacting GOHs in August. I had hoped to do it before but I bought a house.

Budget Committee (Ben Levy): No report.

CIC Committee (Rick Kovalcik): We are acquiring more video gear. A work session is being planned to go through the new stuff, probably at the end of October.

Comps Committee (Mike Sprague): No report.

Grants Committee (David D'Antonio):

We have a grant request from Richard Mann for \$750 which has to do with taking pictures of Cosplayers. Ben pointed out that our Bylaws do not allow us to fund individuals. Motion to amend to give the funds from general funds rather grant funds (Kovalcik, Sbarsky). Amendment passes many to one. Motion passes unanimously.

Honors Committee (Rick Kovalcik for Joel Herda): Nothing to report (knock on wood).

Hotel Search (Kris Snyder): Ben Levy reports that the money to expand the BCEC has been approved.

IT Committee (Alex Latzko): We have IT.

Relaxacon Report (Rick Kovalcik):

No report. Jill Eastlake gave us a lead for a place in Sturbridge. The Eboard asked Lisa Hertel to go look at it.

Student Art Contest: (Jacob Lefton): Terry Holt reports that Jacob may be asking for more money to deal with inflation.

Student Writing Contest (Terry Holt): I'm working on getting things together.

Old Business: None.

New Business:

A motion to amend the election process for Members-At-Large was submitted signed by more than 5 people [11 people signed it]:

Move to change the Bylaws as follows:

3.6 A majority of the votes cast is required to elect an officer [ADD except at-large members]. On each ballot in which no candidate has received a majority, the candidate with the fewest votes shall be dropped for subsequent ballots.

[ADD NEW AFTER 3.6 and before 3.7: Voting for atlarge members of the Eboard will be by Australian Preferential Ballot / Instant Runoff Voting (APB / IRV) as implemented by Worldcon.]

There a motion to amend to change "Worldcon" by "the World Science Fiction Society (WSFS) as of 2013." The amendment was passed unanimously. The Bylaws amendment motion now reads:

Move to change the Bylaws as follows:

3.6 A majority of the votes cast is required to elect an officer [ADD except at-large members]. On each ballot in which no candidate has received a majority, the candidate with the fewest votes shall be dropped for subsequent ballots.

[ADD NEW AFTER 3.6 and before 3.7: Voting for atlarge members of the Eboard will be by Australian Preferential Ballot / Instant Runoff Voting (APB / IRV) as implemented by WSFS as of 2013.]

This is automatically tabled until the next meeting as notice needs to be given in Mentor.

Move to raise Dealer's rates by 20% across the board (Shectman, Vandenberg). Motion to amend to raise the rates further by the year ahead rate and include one membership per table (DDA, Jill Eastlake). After some discussion, the amendment was withdrawn. Motion passes unanimously.

Alex moves the Convention Budget. Motion to go into the Committee of the Whole (Latzko, ???). Motion to go into Committee of the Whole passes unanimously.

Motion to come out of Committee of the Whole with amendments to increase Volunteer Crash Space under Staff Services by \$300 to \$8000 and the move the \$1200 from CBS to Art Show Reception (since CBS is not coming to Arisia) (Snyder, many). Passes unanimously.

A'15 Convention Budget as amended passes unanimously.

Announcements:

Rick has some left over NESFA Freebie Books to give away.

Motion to hold October meeting on Tuesday October 14th at 7:30 PM at a place TBD but hopefully the NESFA Clubhouse.

The meeting was adjourned at 4:17 pm.

Treasurer's Report

Income for August includes dues and a late payment for an item purchased in the A'12 Art Show.

Expenses include liability insurance, reimbursing PeterO for the purchase of a bunch of video gear, and payment of the non-grant to Richard Man.

Aug 31, 2014		Change vs last month
Odd Year - A13	\$20,564.65	-\$18.10
Even Year - A14	\$41,243.23	-\$6,651.96
Corporate		
Reserved/Unspent		
Two years expenses (CDs)	\$41,637.22	\$1.14
Grant Fund	\$700.00	\$0.00
Capital Equipment Fund	\$1,732.04	-\$1,040.00
Training Fund	\$1,289.00	\$0.00
Helsinki in 2017 - USA	\$271.52	-\$2,030.89
Scholarship(?) Fund	\$0.00	\$0.00
Voted Expenses (excludes budget)	\$900.00	\$900.00
Unspent Budget	\$16,409.25	-\$4,020.85
Total Reserved	\$62,939.03	-\$20,430.10
Unallocated Funds	\$13,472.75	\$0.00
Total Corporate Funds	\$76,411.78	\$0.00
Total Assets	\$138,491.18	\$0.00

Total Corporate Income	\$491.18	\$488.61
Total Corporate Expenses	-\$3,718.21	-\$2,679.32

Membership List (as of 9/08/2014)

Strikethrough (like this) indicates expired memberships. Italics (like this) indicates honorary (non-voting) members.

Dawn Ash	Jeanne Kahn	Sheila Oranch
Rob Bazemore	Walter Kahn	Tony Orlandella
Melissa Beetham	Terry Karney	Kris Pelletier
Bridget Boyle	Rick Katze	Karen Purcell
Anna Bradley	Allan Kent	Josh Rachlin
Andrea Carney	Rick Kovalcik	Danielle Reese
Brian Cooper	Kathryn Kun	Noel Rosenberg
Tom Coveney	Paul Kraus	Joseph Ross
David D'Antonio	Zanne Labonville	Sharon Sbarsky
Samantha Dings	Alex Latzko	Richard Schmeidler
Mary Dumas	Jacob Lefton	Micah Schneider
Don Eastlake	Paul Letersky	Jude Shabry
Jill Eastlake	Michael Leuchtenburg	Nicholas Shectman
Daniel Eareckson	Benjamin Levy	Cris Shuldiner
John Francini	Carol London	David Silber
Jaime Garmendia	Ken London	Rachel Silber
Joel Herda	Glenn MacWilliams	Kris Snyder
Brendan Hertel	Alan McAvinney	Mike Sprague
Lisa Hertel	Amos Meeks	Janet Stickle
Terry Holt	James Meickle	Persis Thorndike
Crystal Huff	Dale Meyer-Curley	Tom Traina
Steve Huff	Erik Meyer-Curley	Amol Vaidya
Fred Isaacs	Lori Mortimer	Pat Vandenberg
Ray Isaacs	Dan Noe	Al Walker
Suli Isaacs	Abby Noyce	Conor Walsh
Rachel Kadel-Garcia	Lia Olsborg	Tanya Washburn
	Peter Olszowka	Alexandra Wilkie

Committee Lists

Budget Committee: Ben Levy	IT Committee: Alex Latzko
(chair), Rachel Kadel-Garcia,	
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	(chair), Ben Levy, Skip Morris,
Alex Latzko, Alan McAvinney	Noel Rosenberg, Nicholas
	Shectman
Comps Committee: Mike	Ombuds Committee: Rachel
Sprague (chair), David	Silber (chair), Anna Bradley,
D'Antonio, Kathryn Kun,	David D'Antonio, Jaime
Danielle Reese, Skip Morris,	Garmendia, Rick Kovalcik,
Jaime Garmendia	Kathryn Kun, Sharon Sbarsky,
	Kris Snyder
Grant Committee:, David	Long Range Planning
D'Antonio (chair), Fred Isaacs,	Committee: (vacant)
Noel Rosenberg	
Honors Committee: Joel	Relaxacon Committee: Rick
Herda (chair), Bridget Boyle,	Kovalcik
Rick Kovalcik	
Hotel Search Committee: Kris	Student Art Contest
Snyder (chair), Ben Levy,	Committee: Jacob Lefton
Rachel Silber	
Inventory Control	Student Writing Contest
Committee: Rick Kovalcik	Committee: Terry Holt (chair),
(chair), Lia Olsborg, Skip	Kris Pelletier, Anna Bradley,
Morris, hobbit, Lisa Hertel	Mike Sprague

2013-2014 Executive Board (Eboard)

President	Conor Walsh	president@arisia.org
Vice President	David D'Antonio	vicepresident@arisia.org
Corporate Treasurer	Benjamin Levy	treasurer@arisia.org
Clerk	Rick Kovalcik	clerk@arisia.org
Members-At- Large	Anna Bradley Kathryn Kun Tanya Washburn	tpau@arisia.org kathryn@arisia.org tanya@arisia.org
Arisia '14 Conchair	Lisa Hertel	conchair@arisia.org
Arisia '14 Treasurer	Rachel Kadel-Garcia	con-treasurer@arisia.org
Arisia '15 Conchair	Mike Sprague	conchair@arisia.org
Arisia '15 Treasurer	Alex Latzko	con-treasurer@arisia.org

Storage Key List

If you do not have a key and need to get into storage, email keys@arisia.org and all keyholders will get your request.

Key	Holder	Key	Holder
1	Landlord	16	Lia Olsborg
2	Noel Rosenberg	17	Anna Bradley
3	Skip Morris	18	Peter Olszowka
4	Craig McDonough	19	Alex Latzko
5	Dave Shevett	20	David Shaw
6	Phi	21	Conor Walsh
7	Dan Noe	22	Sharon Sbarsky
8	Michael Trachtenberg	23	Lucky
9	Hobbit	24	Pat Vandenberg
10	Rick Kovalcik	25	Lisa Hertel
11	Crystal Huff	26	Arthur Ercolini
12	Persis Thorndike	27	Benjamin Levy
13	Rachel Silber	28	Angela Morley
14	Janet Stickle	29	David Silber
15	Mike Sprague	30	Spare

Mentor Subscription Information

Subscription to *Mentor of Arisia* is included with Corporate Membership to Arisia, Incorporated. Membership runs from September 1st to August 31st and costs \$24. Dues are prorated on a monthly basis for members joining during the year.

September	\$24	March	\$12
October	\$22	April	\$10
November	\$20	May	\$08
December	\$18	June	\$06
January	\$16	July	\$04
February	\$14	August	\$02

Upcoming Events and Meetings

Thursday September 18, 2014, 7 PM: Arisia ConCom meeting at MIT in Cambridge, MA (Please check your email for exact location.)

Sunday September 28, 2014, 2 PM: Arisia Corporate meeting (Annual Meeting including election of officers) at MIT in Cambridge, MA (Please check your email or building 66 for meeting or location if it is changed.)

Tuesday October 14⁻2014, 7:30 PM: Arisia Corporate meeting at a place TBD but hopefully the NESFA Clubhouse.

Policies of Arisia, Incorporated (as approved August 3rd, 2014)

CORPORATE POLICIES MEMBERSHIP AND DUES

- 1. Dues for all members are payable on Sept 1 of each year. Any member who joins during the year shall be pro-rated to the following September 1st. All memberships expire Sept 1st. There is an automatic grace period until the start of elections at the Annual meeting. The eboard may choose to extend the grace period for all members to no later than 31 December of the Corporate Year. Any member who has neither paid their dues, nor requested a hardship waiver, shall have their membership expire at the beginning of elections of the Annual Meeting. The clerk shall notify any member who has neither paid their dues nor requested a hardship waiver by September 1st.
- II. Members who request a waiver of dues or makes other dues arrangement due to financial hardship shall remain confidential and will not be reported in the minutes.

CORPORATE MATTERS

- 1. The Executive Board shall appoint the next Convention Chairman. This appointment shall be made no later than the Annual Meeting.
- II. Where space permits, a notice that Arisia, Mentor of Arisia, and the Arisia Lens, are service marks of Arisia, Incorporated shall be affixed. Preferably, the most prominent appearances of the name should bear the superscript of SM.
- III. The Clerk shall receive INSTANT MESSAGE, the newsletter of the New England Science Fiction Association, and other newsletters, and make it available to the Executive Board members.
- IV. The executive board has the authority to approve and set ad rates where not otherwise set by the membership in bylaws or policies. Such rates must exceed marginal costs.
- V. Only the Executive Board of Arisia, Incorporated may speak on behalf of the corporation.
- VI. The Clerk is responsible for the timely distribution of Arisia mail from the mailbox to the responsible individuals. The Clerk shall make an archive copy of all appropriate paper correspondence. This task may be delegated.
- VII. No Corporate or Convention entity may enter into any agreement that violates any Corporate or Convention Bylaw or Policy or any applicable Federal, State, county or municipal laws, regulations or codes.

FINANCE

- I. The Executive Board has the authority to look into bonds for future plans--not immediate needs.
- II. Any two members of the Executive Board may authorize issuing of promissory notes.
- III. There will be a thorough review of the books every time there is a change of treasurer unless the outgoing treasurer has been in office for less than a year.
- IV. Corporate dues should be sufficient to cover basic corporate expenses unless that amount would be clearly excessive. When more specific figures are available, corporate dues will be reviewed according to this principle.
- V. Anyone receiving income must report the source of that income for IRS purposes. All expenses are to be accounted for exactly.
- VI. All persons with budgetary authority must keep track of the budget balances in consultation with the treasurer
- VII. All money received by the Corporation from any source for any purpose, excluding convention business, must be recorded in a receipt book maintained by the Corporate Treasurer for such purposes without regard to the form the payment is received in; further, a receipt of payment must be returned to the payer as soon as possible after receiving the payment.
- VIII. Treasury Staff shall not send any amount of cash through the mail.
- IX. Anyone being put on the Hotel Master Bill but not being comped will provide an imprint of a credit card to the Treasurer before keys are handed out.
- X. The Treasurer shall publish in each Mentor a balance sheet listing balances of all accounts, and the balances of fund reserved special purposes.

MERCHANDISE

- 1. All corporate members of Arisia, Incorporated shall receive a 20% discount on all Arisia merchandise.
- II. The Executive Board has the authority to set merchandise prices.
- Three (3) Sales Shirts from each year will be kept for Archival Purposes; Sales Shirts from years preceding the current year which are determined by the Executive Board, in consultation with the Corporate Sales Officer, to be excess will be donated to a charity of the Executive Board's choosing. Furthermore, Lens T-shirts shall be considered an acceptable replacement for 1990 Sales T-shirts, but that actual 1990 Corporate Sales Shirts be preferred, if available.

MEETINGS

- All reports, announcements, and items for submission to the corporate newsletter shall be submitted in writing. Oral reports and announcements shall be reported as best as possible.
- II. All major matters of new business shall be submitted to the Executive Board in writing prior to a meeting of the membership for review prior to discussion.
- III. Motions or proposals that touch on areas covered by any standing committee or corporate official shall be deferred to said committee or official for review and recommendation prior to being brought before the membership.
- IV. Meetings shall be set at those places and times which are convenient for the majority of the membership and not restricted to weekends only.
- V. By Action of the Membership, the Default Location, Time and Place for Corporate Meetings for the '08-'09 Membership Year is the Third Sunday of the month, at 2:00 PM; at MIT Building 66 room 168 (or an adjacent room along the same corridor).
- VI. Any Corporate Member wishing to participate in a Corporate Meeting must do so in person or via a proxy (as described in the Bylaws). If they wish to participate via a proxy, it is up to the Corporate Member to arrange with their proxy how they are kept informed of the progress of the meeting.

OFFICERS AND COMMITTEES

- I. The correct honorific to address the president is El Supremo.
- II. The Executive Board may establish a Long Range Planning Committee to be responsible for researching long-term issues facing the corporation. The number of members shall be set at the discretion of the Board and the interest of the membership.
- III. The Executive Board may establish a Merchandising Committee, to be responsible for making and selling of all items of merchandise that the corporation sells. The number of members shall be set at the discretion of the Board and the interest of the membership.
- IV. The Executive Board shall establish the position of Corporate Inventory Control Officer.
 - a. All keys handed out for Arisia storage be numbered on at least one side of the key with the following number scheme: Set Number. Key Number. For example: 1.1 would be set 1, key 1; 8.4 would be set 8, key 4.
 - b. The Executive Board shall maintain a sign out record (including contact information) for keys to Arisia Incorporated controlled areas.
- V. The following process shall be observed when selecting a Convention Chairman:
 - a. The identity of all candidates shall be public knowledge.
 - b. When there is more than one candidate, each candidate must be interviewed.
 - c. The selection process will start no later than April, and allow the membership to vote to confirm the Executive Board's appointment no later than July. POINT OF INFORMATION: The Executive Board selects and appoints the Convention Chairman so as to avoid a popular vote. The Executive Board is expected to use their judgment when making their selection, and should be able to substantiate the decision if questioned by the membership.
 - d. The resumes of all candidates will be published in the Corporate Newsletter.
- VI. The Student Art Contest and Student Writing Contest shall be corporate functions
 - O Student Art Contest and Student Writing Contest prize money shall be paid from corporate funds.
 - O Administrative costs shall come from the corporation
 - O The cost of transporting the contest submissions in both directions shall be the financial responsibility of the entrants

STORAGE POLICY

- I. Keys may be given out to individuals who need to access storage on a regular basis. Keyholders may not lend out keys to other individuals without EBoard or CIC approval.
- II. Equipment and goods may be stored in Arisia Storage with permission of the EBoard or CIC, provided such items may be used by Arisia for free, ie "at no charge".
- III. Personal (and Arisia owned) equipment in Arisia Storage is not insured by Arisia. If there is any loss or damage, Arisia will not cover the loss or damage but will pass on a pro-rated portion of any money collected from a third party.
- IV. All equipment in Arisia Storage must be labeled with, or be in a container labeled with the owners name; additionally all Arisia owned equipment must be labeled with, or be in a container labeled with the responsible department.
- V. Equipment in storage may be loaned out with EBoard approval. However Common Courtesy and Common Sense dictate that individual owners, and/or committee members responsible for such equipment be consulted before any loan is approved.
 - a. Any time anything is loaned out from storage, an inventory record of said items should be sent to all keyholders to facilitate proper "check-in" when all items are returned.
 - b. Anyone borrowing anything from Arisia Storage must agree to return everything in a like condition as borrowed, or to repair or replace anything damaged in a timely manner.
- VI. The Arisia CIC must maintain a contact list of all keyholders, and all individuals or organizations storing anything in storage. A copy of said list shall be posted in a conspicuous place in storage.

PRIVACY POLICY

- This Privacy Policy applies to ARISIA, Incorporated, and all functions directly and solely sponsored by ARISIA, Incorporated; hereafter referred to as "ARISIA."
 - a. This includes but is not limited to the annual Arisia Convention.
- II. ARISIA may collect personally identifying information in order to create, manage, or enhance our relationship with our corporate & convention members and web site users.
 - This includes, but is not limited to, names, postal mail addresses, phone numbers and/or email addresses.
 - b. This does not include credit card information, which is covered by PCI compliance.
- III. ARISIA shall not sell personally identifying information to any party.
- IV. ARISIA shall not share personally identifying information that it collects with unaffiliated third parties without the express consent of the individual, or, as required by Federal, State, County or Local laws.
 - a. Affiliated third parties are those organizations used by or who provide services to ARISIA and/or the events it sponsors in order to perform its functions
 - i. This includes, but is not limited to, Registration Services Providers, Bulk Mail House Service Providers, Hotel and Housing Services, Transportation services.
 - b. Non-governmental third parties accepting data from ARISIA, for ARISIA's benefit or their own, are required to agree to keep the personally identifying information confidential under a policy substantially similar to this Privacy Policy.

DISCIPLINARY PROCESS

A request to consider disciplinary action against a person or persons may be brought to the eboard by any corporate member. The Eboard will look into all such requests in as confidential a manner as possible.

After investigating, the Eboard will notify the person(s) involved, and then report their decision to the Corporation with twelve days notice including action to be taken. Any Eboard member involved will be automatically recused from participating in the investigation and decision. The confidentiality of other person(s) involved in the complaint including those making the request will be protected in this report. If no action is taken, the confidentiality of all person(s) involved in the complaint will be protected in this report. No matter what action is taken, no names will be published in Mentor nor elsewhere in public and restricted as much as possible after the report to those with a need to know. Possible actions include but are not limited to a ban from attending, volunteering, staffing, or otherwise participating for a number of year(s) or permanently. If the Membership wishes to overturn this decision of the EBoard under bylaw 4.4, a motion to do so shall be in order only during New Business of the corporate meeting at which this decision is reported or the corporate meeting immediately after. After that, the decision is binding on future events but may be appealed to the EBoard after at least one year. Such appeals will be heard by the then current Eboard and will be handled in the same fashion as original requests. Revocation of convention membership because of actions at or involving the current year's convention is up to the Convention Chair or their designee. Revocation of membership because of actions not involving the current year's convention should always use this process. A Convention Chair may

DEALING WITH INCIDENT REPORTS

The Eboard will appoint a committee of three from the voting and ex-officio members of the eboard to review and manage incident reports, with preference to them being the members at large. Those three people should select one of their number as chair of the committee to:

- a. To take physical responsibility for reports, log books, and related materials from the ops div head at the end of the convention
- b. To be the point of contact for incident reports received by email and to ensure they are archived and referred appropriately
- c. To acknowledge all incident reports within two weeks of receipt

always choose that they do not wish a particular person or person(s) working on their con.

Based on their review of the incident reports, the committee shall bring complaints as needed to the Eboard for investigation and possible disciplinary action.

Incident reports are not to be shared with other people or organizations other than the people in Arisia who take the reports or participate in the investigation. Actions taken as a result of the report can be shared with others under the restrictions given elsewhere in corporate policies. Incident reports that are referred to the Eboard are handled in accordance with the Disciplinary Policy above.

MISCELLANEOUS

- I. The clerk may provide two issues of Mentor to non-members who attend meetings or who otherwise show or are thought to be interested in Arisia.
- II. Contact information for individuals (for instance, in MENTOR) should not be posted to the Web in searchable text form, unless requested otherwise.

CONVENTION POLICIES

I. The Arisia Code-of-Conduct is included by reference as a corporate policy.

The Convention Committee is required to establish and document a procedure that is publicly accessible for taking incident reports, including but not limited to violations of Arisia's code of conduct, during the convention.

The procedure will support the following:

- O We take all complaints into consideration.
- O We may initiate significant action in response to a single complaint.
- O We are careful to correctly identify persons in the complaint.
- O We treat the people making complaints with respect, listen to them, and take the complaints seriously.
- O When appropriate, we work to bring about a resolution which mitigates future harm (so far as is possible).
- O An offending party will be told there is a complaint against them but the source of the complaint will not be identified, nor will that person be given an opportunity to confront the person making the complaint.

In cases where it is possible for an offense to be redressed and where the people making complaints would like such an action, we will if possible help this to occur

- II. Advertising Rates (to be adjusted if costs change)
 - a. Professional ad rates

Full	1/2	1/4	Center	Color	Bleed	Inside Cover	Outside Cover
\$500	\$300	\$200	+\$500	+\$500	+\$50	+\$400	+\$800

b. Semi-Pro:

50% for page rates and no discount for extra charges.

Fan

25% for page rates and no discount for extra charges.

In all cases, round up to nearest \$5

c. In addition, we have added the following rates for the souvenir book to use if need be:

1/3	1/6	Business Card	Bitty/blurb
\$250	\$150	\$100	\$50

d. Pocket Program & Restaurant Guide rates:

Pocket Program same as Souvenir Book (because of high cost of publication among other things).

- Restaurant guide \$300, \$200, \$125, discount for advertisers to give a discount to Arisia attendees.
- e. NO coupons in lieu of payment for ads.
- f. Prices quoted are for camera ready copy
- g. A special 10% discount may be deducted for any advertisement that reaches us by _____. Payment is due upon submission of advertisement.
- h. Arisia will have a perpetual one-page black and white SB ad trade (swap) with NESFA.

III. Art Show Rates

- The standard unit of Art Show panel space shall be four foot by four foot (4' x 4') in size. The standard unit of Art Show table space shall be as close to a thirty-inch by six-foot (30" x 6') table as can be provided.
- a. The cost for panel shall be \$28 and the cost for table space shall be \$36.

1 Table 6' X 30"	\$36	1 Panel 4' X 4'	\$28
½ Table 3' X 30"	\$18	½ Panel 4' X 2'	\$18

- b. The convention may sell any kind of fractional space, rounding the price up to the nearest dollar.
- c. The cost for floor space for free standing art shall be the same as for table space. Oversized pieces of art will be charged at a special rate.
- d. All high school students, and any college level art student enrolled full time in an accredited degree granting institution shall have their first unit of space fee waived.
- e. The Print Shop has a limit of three to ten copies per unique image. One copy of each item must be displayed on the artist's panel or table.
- f. There shall be a fifteen-dollar (\$15.00) service charge to process mail-in art. Sufficient funds must accompany the art to cover return postage and any desired shipping insurance. Any surplus will be returned to the artist.
- g. The Arisia Artist Guest of Honor shall not be charged any Art Show or Print Shop fees or commissions.

IV. Dealer Rates

The fee for the Dealers Room is \$120 per table.

- a. The fee for the Dealers' Row is \$120 per room, and does not include the cost of renting the room from the hotel.
- Dealers fees do not include memberships.

V. Registration Policies

Each convention will set a cap subject to approval by the corporation on the number of members on site at a single point in the convention, known as the "registration cap".

- Registration shall keep records such that the registration cap can be calculated and the Convention Chair can be kept informed of the number
- 2. The calculation used to measure the registration cap is:

Total full weekend registrations (sold and comps) + one-day comps and paid one-day memberships for that day.

- 3. The Convention Chairman shall be allowed to increase the registration cap by 200 memberships before convening the Executive Board of Arisia, Incorporated, in order to increase the limit further.
- 4. The Convention Chairman shall consult, if possible, with division heads and with the head of Security before raising the cap.
- If no action is taken, the registration cap will default to the number established for the previous convention.
- 6. The Registration cap for Arisia 2015 is 3800, with provision for increasing the cap
- a. Membership Rates
 - 1. The year-ahead rate is \$40.
 - The pre-reg rate:
 - i. Until September 30th is \$45.
 - ii. October 1st through December 31st is \$55.
 - 3. The at-door (after December 31st) rate is \$65.
 - 4. The rate for students (with ID) aged 13-25 is \$30.
 - 5. The rate for children and Fast Track shall be equal to the rate for adult memberships.
 - 5. The rate for babysitting/childcare shall be \$65 regardless of time of purchase.
 - A membership discount of \$5 may be offered at parties that are promoting Arisia at other conventions.
 - . The rates for at-con registration shall be as follows:

Full weekend \$65
Friday only \$20
Saturday only \$45
Sunday only \$30
Monday only \$10

b. The schedule of discounts for group memberships shall be set as follows:

 Size of Group
 Discount

 10-14 memberships
 5%

 15-19 memberships
 10%

 20-29 memberships
 15%

 30+ memberships
 20%

To qualify for the group discounts, the number of memberships must be bought with one check (or credit card, or exact amount in cash). A contact person must submit all the names of the group members. Group memberships must be purchased no later than six weeks before the convention or at the end of the pre-reg period--whichever is earlier.

- c. Memberships that are paid with "REAL MONEY" are transferable within type (child to child, adult to adult) from one person to another, but only for the year in which they are bought. This includes "guest of X" memberships, and normal transfer regulations, letter and ID, apply. Anyone wishing to transfer a membership to another year must have the approval of both the original year's Convention Chairman and the new year's Chairman.
- d. All "NO-CHARGE" memberships and admissions to Arisia are non-transferable. No-Charge Memberships Shall Include:
 - Earned Memberships (aka Earned Comp)

- Guest of Honor
- Former Guest of Honor
- Press Pass
- Program Participant Membership (aka Program Comp)
- Event Participant Membership (aka Event Comp)
- Gaming Membership (aka Gaming Comp)
- Award Guest (Student Art, etc.)
- Paid Worker (babysitters, organist, hired security, Labor Ready, etc)
- Equipment Exchange (Equipment provided by individual who does not otherwise work for the convention).
- Kids-(or Adults)-In-Tow
- Gift Memberships (anything not listed above)
 - EARNED MEMBERSHIPS are defined as memberships acquired by anyone who puts in the required 12 hours of non-excluded time
 working on the convention.
 - Exclusions include:
 - a. Time spent participating in a program item.
 - Time spent while making or attempting to make a personal profit, such as dealers and live role-playing organizers.
 - Time spent at meetings.
 - ii. Hours put in before or after the convention must be documented, and will be counted toward the time limit required. An Earned Membership is good at any one Arisia Convention within two conventions of the convention in which it was earned.
 - iii. Hours worked before a particular convention may count towards an earned membership for the current convention. To qualify, the pre-convention hours must be recorded on a separate timesheet and all pre-convention hours are applied to the current convention's membership (i.e., if a volunteer works 24 hours pre-convention, the volunteer may not apply 12 hours to the current convention's membership and the remaining 12 hours to the next year's convention).
 - iv. Work involved in set-up and tear-down, including loading and unloading the logistics vehicles, shall count double for volunteer benefits.
 - 2. GIFT MEMBERSHIPS are obtained from the Convention Chairman or their delegate.
 - A person can not receive a gift membership in two consecutive years.
 - 3. KIDS-IN-TOW/ADULTS-IN-TOW: are required to always be with a person with a membership when they are in any convention area. This does not apply to any other "no charge" membership.
 - 4.
- Program Participants shall be given a full-weekend membership for participating on three (3) or more programming items. Program Participants on 1-2 programming items shall be given single-day membership(s) for the day(s) of the item(s).
- ii. Event Organizers (up to two) of each event shall be given a full-weekend membership.
- iii. Event Participants (performers and support personnel) shall be given single-day membership(s) for the day(s) of their event(s). Event Participants who participate in three (3) or more event items shall be given a full-weekend membership.
- iv. Program Participants who are also Event Participants shall have each event counted as a programming item for purposes of comp membership.
- 5. Game Masters scheduled to run four (4) or more hours of gaming for four (4) or more players shall be given a full weekend membership. Game Masters scheduled for less time/people may purchase an upgraded membership as though they had received a single-day membership.
- 6. Single-day comped membership may be upgraded to a full weekend memberships for the price of the earliest available pre-reg rate (not the year-ahead rate) as specified in Convention Policy IV.B.
- 7. Exceptions to this policy require authorization from the conchair or his/her delegate. Exceptions shall be summarized to the corporation.
- There will be no distinction made on badges between paid and "no charge" memberships. This does not include Program Participant ribbons, or Kids-In-Tow or Adults-In-Tow indicators.
- f. Lost badges shall be replaced for a one-time fee of \$5.00. The fee shall be refundable upon return of original badge. The second time a lost badge replacement is requested the party will be required to purchase a replacement membership at full price.
- g. Memberships may not be sold for a single function (e.g., Masquerade or a concert).
- h. All past Arisia GOHs and Special Guests receive comp memberships in future Arisias, if requested
- VI. Each Convention Chairman is allowed to select the Guests of Honor for their convention
- VII. Each Convention Chairman is allowed to make use of ARISIA, the Arisia Lens, and any other Arisia marks on gifts.
- VIII. Concerning line item transfers within the Convention Budget,
 - A Convention Chairman may transfer funds from the contingency fund in the Convention Budget in accordance with Section 9.4 of the Bylaws.
 - a. A Division Head may, with the approval of the Convention Chairman, transfer funds between any other line items in the Convention Budget within that division provided that:
 - 1. The total sum of income and expenditures remain unchanged.
 - 2. The Division Head shall report each transfer to the Corporate and Convention Treasurers.
 - 3. Transfer of funds between divisions may be made, with the approval of the Executive Board after the last Corporate Meeting before the convention.
- IX. Any person holding a party to promote an Arisia Convention shall be allotted twenty dollars (\$20.00) as gratuity for the maid. Further, said person may be compensated for any additional charges placed by the hotel upon the party room for cleaning purposes. Finally, the Convention Chairman may authorize up to the cost of one room night be paid if the party host attended the convention for the sole purpose of publicizing Arisia.
- X. Anyone bringing a lawsuit against Arisia, Incorporated, or any Arisia function, event, or subsidiary, shall not be allowed to attend any Arisia convention until said suit is resolved.
- XI. Anyone working 8 hours at the convention will receive a Team Arisia T-shirt. Pre-con work shall count toward T-shirts.
- XII. All dealers (both Dealers' Room and Dealers' Row) are required to sign a liability waiver (to indemnify Arisia from stupid things dealers do) as part of the dealers contract. The eboard shall provide the wording of the waiver.
- XIII. For all debts owed to Arisia or an Arisia convention incurred from March 2010 forward, no one owing more than the at-door cost of an adult membership is allowed to attend without repaying the entire debt or making a payment plan acceptable to the Corporate Treasurer first.
- XIV. Relaxacon registration rates shall be:
 - O prereg: \$20 for the weekend, \$15 for Friday or Saturday, and half price for children under 10
 - O at con: \$30 for the weekend and \$20 for Friday or Saturday (and half price for children).